Chapter 18 Closing Jury Arguments in a Satellite Dish
Door-to-Door Scam
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spread premiums." He also became a national spokesman for the rights of consumers and
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million dollars. As a result of this litigation, the finance company in question ceased to be

involved in such activities in the state of Alabama.
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Plaintiffs Perspective," "Business Torts from a Plaintiffs Perspective," "Preparing
Yourself to Take an Experts Deposition," "Consumer Fraud Class Action: A Plaintiff's
Perspective," "Damages, Theories & Trial Strategies," "The Workup of a Debit Insurance
Fraud Case," "Mortgage Fraud', "Winning and Collecting Big Verdicts Against Fringe
Market Sellers," "The Workup of a Consumer Credit Fraud Case," "Alabama's Poverty
Industry," "Fraud in Alabama," "Binding Arbitration and Its Effect on Consumer Finance
Cases," "When Business Needs a Trial Lawyer," "Negotiations and Settlements of a Civil
Action from a Plaintiffs Perspective," and "Alabama—The Arbitration State."

Tom is on the Board of Alabama Trial Lawyers for Children and the Cystic
Fibrosis Advisory Panel. He also serves on the Board of the Let God Arise Ministries.
Tom is married to the former Amy Agee of Birmingham and they have two sons. He
attends church at Christ Community Church in Montgomery. He can be reached at
Beasley, Allen, Crow, Methvin, Portis, & Miles, P.C., P.O. Box 4160, Montgomery, AL
36130, (334) 269 2343, fax: (334) 954 7555.

LaBarron N. Boone practices consumer law with the firm of Beasley, Allen,
Crow, Methvin, Portis & Miles, P.C., P.O. Box 4160, Montgomery, Alabama
36103-4160, (334) 269-2343, Fax: (334) 954-7555, email:
labarron.boone@beasleyallen.com. His areas of practice include consumer fraud,
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is a graduate of the University of Alabama Law School: (J.D., 1995) and Auburn
University (B.LE., 1990).

LaBarron concentrates his practice in product liability, consumer fraud, and
personal and injury. He is the recipient of the "Chairman's Award of Excellence"
presented by MCDC Young Democrats on September 28, 2000. He is a lecturer for The
Association of Trial Lawyers of America. He was president of Kappa Alpha Psi
Fraternity. He was featured in the April 2001 edition of the Kappa Alpha Psi Journal
discussing the law on how it related to consumer issues. LaBarron was also featured in
the December 1999 issue of Jet Magazine involving victories for consumers regarding the
two cases he tried resulting in verdicts of $581 and $116 million in the Merriweather v.
Whirlpool and Aultman v. Terex Telelect cases respectively. A cover story was done on
LaBarron in the Urban Metro June 2000 issue titled, "Lawyer Makes Big Strides in
Alabama's America's Community." He was the 2000-2001 President of the Capital City
Bar Association and also serves as president of the Alabama Lawyers Association.

This chapter is the consumers’ closing argument from a case in which the jury
awarded $581 million in damages for fraudulently selling satellite dishes door to door.
The closing argument emphasized the fraud perpetrated by the defendants: telling their
door to door victims that they would only have to make payments for three years when
the documents provided for payments for four years and four months. It was pointed out
that the documents provided for payments totaling $1800 when the satellite dish was only
worth $199. The argument emphasized that in addition to the plaintiffs, there were
hundreds of other victims in the state-the defendant testified that they received thousands
of complaints at their national headquarters each week. It emphasized that a significant
award was necessary to send a message to the board of the defendant and the other
companies selling door to door in the state.



12

LS} ]

N

Ch

.
Cw)

-é‘,!,

55

CLOSING ARGUMENT

. BY MR. METHVIN:

Before we start closing, I’'d like to read the jury the
f stipulation we had where ooth parties agreed. Ladies and gentlemen
%lof the jury, this can be :akeﬁ‘as evidence. And the parties have
:= agreed that if the—and—had made all their
'_§éyménts-on time, and had nct had any new charges, that the satellite
~ dish woﬁld have been paid cff in four years and four months. Tﬁat’s
E evidence in this case.

May it please the Court. Ladies and ‘gentlemen of the jury, you
know now what has taken .us twg years to uncover in this case. Very
simple. This is a big case. It was a big case for several reasons.
It’s a big case because rezlly it’s a test case. 'No satellite dish
~ fraud case against a finance éompany has gone to the jury in Alabéma
" in the history of Alabama. This is the first one. And thaﬁ is why
?the jury system is so impcrtant in this case.

As I told you earlier, the jury system is the thing that sets
%_America apart from other ccuntries. It is the only place where folks
;can really get justice. Especially folks who have been victimized by

; widespread cheating and pradatory lending practices like this crowd

-5 has perpetrated. And that is why those in corporate America today are
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trying to take away the right to trial by jury. They’re trying to do
it in what they call tcrt reform. They’re trying to do it in

arbitration agreements, by when you sign a document, you can’t go to
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& jury. Because they know this is the only place where there’:
consumer protecticn, where the twelve people on this jury have the
same power as the folks over there and the folks up in Michigan in the
boardroom that are making the decisions to run Whirlpool. Y’all are
cn a Zesvel playing field. And that is the duty of jury system. Anc
that’s why I teld yvou before that Whirlpool is scared. They have nof
faced a jury before for what they’ve done. And it’s time for them t¢
face = jury. And it’s time for them to let a jury pass on what
they’ve done.

ind it’s a big case for other reasons. This case is going tc

T Rave impact, what you do. What you say is going to have impact on the

|

antirse finance dish finance -- Excuse me. It’s going to have ar

impact on the entire industry of door-to-door sales and financing.

4 'There'are,folks geing through the community right now in this county

' and cther counties selling Kirby vacuum cleaners, selling furniture,

sélli:g alarms, selling satellite dishes. All going into people’s
nomes and signing them up on documents, and getting them hooked or
payments. And there’s a lot.of fraud involved in those. And a 1lot
of pscple have been victims of that. |

zn fact, yesterday there was some lawyers here from Californie
that represent a company, a bank called Fidelify Bank that has beer
sued for financing Kirby in this area. And they’re here to watch.
And they were keeping a close eye on this.

So what y’all do is not Jjust going to affect Whirlpool, this

predatory crowd over here, or the whole industry, it’s going to affect
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the entire door-to-door sales and finance industry. And I'm going to
ask you to do jﬁstice in thié case. Because when the case is over,
I'm going to make a suggestion to you that you send a message to
Whirlpool, to other finance companies, to all the door~to-door crowd
that says, “a jury in Hale County has heard what y’all have done, and
we don’t like it. And we say you ought to stop, and you ought to go
back and make it right”. .

They on the other hand of course are going to ask for you to puf
your stamp of approval and say what they’ve done is okay. Because
they’ re going to have to make a phone call. Thére’s the corporate in-
house lawyer for Whirlpool Corpecration sitting right there on the
first row(indicating). He’s going to have to make a phone call right
after this jury comes back back to Michigan to say, “we got away with
it. We can keep on doihg what we’re doing”. Or he’s going to have
to say, “they’ve told us to'stop. Let’s bring this up at the next
board meeting. Let’s see if we ought to check out these dealers a
little bit more. Let’s see if we ought to tell others in the industry
to learn from what happened to us. They ought to check out their’
dealers. Let’s see if maybe we ought to find out if folks are being

victimized. And if they are, maybe we ought to go back and fix it”.

Now, you know now that.this is a flim-flam. Mr. —

+

sitting right there on the front row said it better  than anybody:
could. He’s not here now, but he was here on Monday. He said this;
is a flim-flam. And it is a flim-flam. It is a flim-flam from thei

very top of it. It ain’t one flim-flam, it’s thousands of flim-flams.
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They did not just through Gulf Coast Electronics, they did it through

at least four dezlers that you’ve heard people testify about in hére.

‘You’ve heard witnesses say they dealt with Telestar, Centevision,
. Aroryck, severzl other ones. All told the same lie through different

‘ dealers. And you kncw now that it’s not an isolated case. In fact

it’s everywhere. It’s running rampant. And you saw when I
highlightéd this map after Mr. - testified.

And, look, he’s got nothing to gain or lose in this case. He's

..not a party. Ee’s not asking for anything. He sat up there and

raised his hand and swore to tell the truth. And he told you that

people have been victimized in everyone of these counties that I have

> written in red. He knows of approximately two hundred folks out there

right now that have got Whirlpool satellite dishes that they’re making

‘payments on, and they think that they’'re supposed to pay for three

years, and that’'s a lie.

He also told you that he told Whirlpool some cf these problems.
And what did they do. What do you expect them to do. This crowd’'s
out there to make money, make a profit. They’re closing their eyes
while that money is sucking out of Alabama like a tick, just coming,
coming, coming. And I don’t think they’re going to change their ways

unless you do something about it. Also you see there are other

i counties where people testified from, Gulf Coast Electronics in

Mobile, people from Montgomery, people from Tuscaloosa. And so you
see this is not really the case of these victims right here. This is

a case of all people that have been victimized by this. And it's a
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scam, and it is a scheme, and it’s a flim-flam. And they know it.

And when they get up here in their part of closing statement, I
want them to tell you why what they did is not wrong. They can’'t do
it. They can’t do it, because everybody knows it’s wrong. Everybody
in this courtroom knows it’s wrong.

Now, you also saw, in addition to the two.hundred folks that have
been victimized out there, you saw fifty-nine lawsuits where people
have filed suits against them in the state of Alabama, and public
records, and said, “Whirlpool you have cheated me too. You have come
into my house through your dealers and lied to me”. Did that slow
that crowd down. Not one bit. That put them on notice there was a
problem. What did they do, turned that head. In the mean time, they
kept taking those dellar bills in. This is, there’s no question about
it, preditory lending. .

Preditory lending. I asked them if they had ever heard of that,
‘and everybody said, “oh, no, I’ve never heard of that”. When you
charge somebody $1100.00 plus 22 percent‘interest rate, that means
they’'re going to have to pay $1800.00 for that satellite dish over
time. And you heard Mr. -, who ain’t got nothing to gain or
lose in this case, tell you how.much a satellite dish costs in 1995,
$199.00. But yet why should these folks have to pay $1800.00. I want
this crowd to tell us where the justice is in that. There ain’t no
justice in that. The effective and the real interest rate of having
to pay back $1800.00 when you only borrow 199.00 is over 300 percent.

That is preditory lending. They sought out unsophisticated people.
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They came into their homss. They armed the dealers with their
documents. They got them on the hook, and then they sat back up there
behind the curtain and jusT sucked the money out of them. And evenf
when people complained, like you heard one witness sat on the stand

and said, “I'm from Tuscalocsa. Yeah, I called them, and I told them,

they still didn’t fix it”. They said, “that’s tough. You signed the

documents, you got to pay”. Reckon how much of that goes on.

Now, let’s look at wha:t Mr.

He told you that they had z target market. Even Mr.
they had a target market. He said they had a target of coming to
Alabama -- and what was ths term he‘used -~ available consumers.
That’s what he was looking Zor, available consumers. They knew who
they were targeting. Whirlzsool knew that this group was going door-

to-door. They knew the £:cilks were vulnerable. There were prioxr

~lawsuits before he started going to door-to-door. Did they tell him

to slow down? Did they tell him not to target anybody? No, they just
turned their head,'because~;hey were'bringing in a lot, and that‘was
one of bigger dealers, and they were bringing in money hand over feet.
He said that he made Whirlpcol aware of the problems. Did they stop?
No, sir. Still collecting the money'evén'today. . ;
What did Mr. tell you, the corporate rep. He came to
Alabama with this scheme beczuse there were available consumers. And
even to this day, I asked him if all fhese people have been lied to
and cheated and stolen from, is that right. 2nd he still wouldn’; say

anything. He said, “we have done nothing wrong. I’m a corporate man,
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znd I'm proud of what we did. I stand by the ccompany. We haven’t
Zone anvithing wrong”. And that’s their mentality. And I think you
can see pzst that. He did finally admit that if somebody was actually
charging 200 percent, that that is sorry. It would be a sorry company
if vou Zc that. And you know from what Mr. said that they
were chzarging 300 percent, and that is sorry. One Ehing that he said
~hat just shocked me. Did you hear what he said? I wrote it down.
“hey ge:t zhousands, with an “s”, of compaints every week. What does
~hat <tesll vyou? What kind of rotton, low-down company is this?
Thousands of complaints every week. Why haven’t they gone back and
‘body? Why haven’t they given them the money back? What's
Joing tc mzke them do it? When are they going to be responsible for
what they did? Why do they come into people’s homes and cheat them?

Zhousanids ¢ complaints every week. Let’s say thousands means 2,000,

" wou know tThat’'s over 100,000 complaints every year.

Wnat else did he say? They want-to say, “well, Gulf Coast was

the cne that did the bad things. It wasn’t us. We don’t know nothing

. about it”. They put them on a watch list. They knew they were high

20;

risk. They knew who they were dealing with. They had said, “we’re
only recantly out of woods with them”. But they put them on a watch
list. You sa& when I wrote that down when he was talking. He said
they are high risk. And I told him the corporate motto for this crowd
ought to be the dollar sign.. That’s what they ought to have, because
~hat’s 21l they care about. What did he say it was? I find that

interesting, the corporate motto, “service different”. What in the
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world is that?- The corporate mottd is money for them; Volume.
That’s all they care -about. Foiks are just a number. Folks are
treated with calloﬁs disregard for their feelings, and done wrong.

Now, let’s look a little bit further at exactly what they say on
this. They say, “it wasn’t us, it was Gulf.Coast Electronics”. Well,
they’re the ones that went out and found Gulf Coast. They knew they
were deoing four and a2 half million dollars in sales, and they wanted
a pliece of thatvaction. They gave them their documents. They sent
people into the homes. They gave Gulf Coast the authority to explain
those documents for people, to tell them exactly what it was going to
do. And then they sat back and took in the payments. So the law says
in those situations that Gulf Coast was their agent. And if their
agent is cheating Zciks, then Whirlpool is responsible for them. And
that’s a good law if you think about it. ' Because Whirlpool is the one
sitting up there behind ﬁhe curtain collecting all the money. And we
ought to encourage them to police their agents. And that’s the way
that. law stands.

Now, let’s talk about this, which I found very interesting --
how much money did they make off this flim-flam and this scheme? I
asked Mr. —about Gulf Coast Electronics. 1 said, “is Gulf
Coast an average size dealer”. He said, no, they were kind of small.
I thought they did 220 deals, because that’s how many Gulf Coast sent
in.  But he said, “no, they only did 127 deals with us in one year”.

So I wrote down 127 deals in one year. Centevision on the other hand,

that Mr. -testified about, was a bigger dealer. He said that
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? ~hey did 300 deals in three months. So that works out to 800 deals
1 in a year, So what I did is I calculated, “well if Gulf Coast is &
; small one, Centevision may be one of larger ones”. 30 let’s just take
] 2n average. Let’s take an average and say that ezch dealér, 6n arn

average ~- and this won’t be exactly right, but it will be close. It

6| will be an estimate. Zach dealer was selling 463 satellites a year,

Y.
L¥P)

LF 1

getting financed through Whirlpool. I just took zn average between

small dealer and a big dealer. And I said they’re selling 463 a

]\

year. We have before you in evidence that there zre eight dealers.
Jkay. So if an averazge dealer was selling 463 a vear, times eight
dealers, this is how many satellite dishes they are selling and
| getting financed in Alabama every year, 3,704. Okay. Then I asked
fr. — “well how long has this been going ¢ in Alabama”. He

said 1994 to 1998. Four years. So I said, “all right. Y¥’all are

1 selling 3,704 a year in Alabama times four years”. Rough estimate of
~he total that are sold and financed in Alabama is :4,816. That’s a
rough estimate of the number of people that have gotten satellite
ﬂishes ;n the state of Alabama that have been finarced by Whirlpool.
Then I loocked and I said, “now how Much were these folks cheated out
cf”. Remember they’ve got to pay four years and Zour months. - They
were supposed to only have to pay three years. So they’ve got to pay
sixteen extra months at $34.00 a month. So sixteer times thirty-four
is $544.00. So they've got to pay an extra $544.90 more than what
they thought they should have to pay, and what they were told. So if

you say they got 14,816 out there, and each person is cheated out of
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zhe same amount ﬁhey were, that’s 5544.00, you come up with this

number as a total profit from cheating folks in Alabama, of a little

' over eight million dollars. A little over eight million dollars.

$8,000,059.00 if my calculations are right. And y’all can check them

when you get back in the jury box. It’s not going to be exactly right

. because these are estimates. But I’'1ll just say around seven to eight

million dollars is what we’re talking about. So you can see why they

would turn their eye toc 59 complaints. And why they would turn their

;: eye when they got customer complaints. And why they would turn their

head when they’ve got two hundred victims that Mr. -testified
about. And why they would turn ﬁheir head when he tells them they’'ve
got problems. That all mighty dollar, corporate motto. That money

is flowing in. You think they’re going.to stop it voluntarily, not

the chance. | 3

Now let’s talkﬁépecifically about the type of damages in this
case that we'’re asking you to award. The law allows you two types of

damages; compensitory damages, which are designed to compensate folks

: for like mental anguish, worry, feeling just disgusted, feeling like

you’ve been taken advantagé of, having headaches, sleep problems,

. having to get on blood pressure medicine, having your sugar run up,

: those kind of things. That is compensitory damages. Punitive damages

are designed to punish and to stop somebody from doing what they did,

and to punish them for what they did in the past. And the law tells

~you, and the Judge will tell you what punitive damages are. And

punitive damages are to send a message to the industry, to everybody
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~hat doggone it, you rfetter look up, and don’t be doing this, becaus
~hese damages &re to protect the public, to stop wrongful conduct.

Now, we can’t, zs lawyers, can’t tell you what to award. Nobod
zan tell you what tc award. It’s all up to y’'all. We can mak
éuggestions. 2nd iZ you think our suggestions are good, you ca:
follow them, c¢r you con’t have to follow them. If they’re too low
y;u can raise them, If they’'re too high, you can lower them. It‘:
totally up to ycu. -Ncw-I want to talk just generally, and I will mak«
some suggestibns for vou in just a minute. But, again, you don’t have

to follow me if you <Zon’t want to. What did Mrs. —tell you,

and what did the

it. You heard testimony about Mr. saying, “I'm tired o:

P ccll you about how they worried abou:

21 folks doing us this way”. Slammed his fist down. And he cught to bs

tired. I thought we’'d come past that in America. Be ought to be
tired of it. -You heard testimony about headaches from both of them,
from the {§

medicine, the sugar, You heard Mrs, -about how bad she felt

You heard testimony about the blood pressure

for getting her parents into this. About how she’s worried about it,
and how she said, “we’re not rich people, we’re working for a living.
We’re trying to do right”. B2nd one of them said, “look, we ain’t
never done nobody wrong. Why are they doing this to us”. And you car
understand how it kind of weigh on you and get at you. " And that'e
what these kind of damages are for.

So for Mrs. -—I’m going to suggest an amount of

compensitory damages to compensate her for the mental pain and the
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anguish <for what this crowd did to her, $300,000.00. For the

Merriweathers, same thing, $300,000.00 each. Now these are only
suggestions. =nd really, this case is a punitive damage case. That

is what this :asé is about. Now punitive damages are ‘designed like
I said, to send a message. And I don’t know what the right amount is
to get this kind of conduct straight, but I can tell you this, it’'s
got to be big. Because you can noﬁ,put a corporation in jail. You
can not take tTnem out to the woodshed and give them a spanking. There
ain’t but one thing fhat they understand, and that’s money. And the

only way to punish them is to hit them in the pocket book. And

whatever your message is, your punishment has got to be large. If

it’s less thean a million dollars, that ain’t going to get their

Iattention. Thzt’s like a slap on the hand. It’s got to be big. It's

%got to be a m=ssage that’s going tovget all the way back to the home
goffice.office'where this crowd sitting over here goes to the phone
right after the verdict and calls the home office and says, “a jury
in Hale County, the cqnscious of the community, has heard these facts
and they’'ve tcld uslto stop”. What will it take to get that, I don’t
have a magic rumber. We know that theyvprofitted around $8,000,000.00
from what they did. /They weren’t fair to anybody else. But I'm not
going to ask you to award the whole $8,000,000.00. I’'m going to ask
you to be fair to them. Because we have a dut§ tc be fair. It ought
to be something that ought to get their attention. I have a

suggestion, and I'm going to write it in right hers. And this amount

is what in my opinion will get their attention. But if you think the
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_' amount is toc lecw, don't listen to it. Or if it’s too high, don’t

. listen to it. Iz’s strictly a suggestion. And it’s designed to stor

them from doing what they’ve done, and to make them know that y’all
mean business, arnd to let them know on this test case, the test has

come back and thzsv failed.

Now, the amcunt I suggest for —awarded.against

; this corporation is $3,000,000.00. -That would make her total award

e

$3,300,000.0C. <=e amount I would suggest for the to

get their attenticn, to try to stop them, to make them go back and do
right is the sams thing, $3,000,000.00. That would make their total
award $3,600,C00..0. If thesé numbers are wrong, I want them to come
tell you what the right numbers should be. When you go back to

deliberate, the Judge is going to give y’all these jury verdict forms.

t . de’s going tc asz y’all to select a foreperson to kind of be the

leader and kind <Z lead the group. You have fou; forms to choose
from. If you want to rule in favor of the victims against this abusér
over here, here’s a one page document, there are two of them, you
don’t need them, tecause they say you’re going to find for them. You
don’t need those. You don’t write on them, you don’t put x’s on them,
you don’t do anything. If you want to find for the victims here, and
agains them, you have two forms. You got to fill them both out. Eéch

one of them has got two pages. The first one says, “we find for the

plaintiffs, p against the following

defendants.” And it has a place to check Whirlpool Financial and.
-doing business as Gulf Coast Electronics. You put an “X” or
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z check mark in both of those blocks. Then you would turn over to the
second page, it says, | “*we find that the_ claintiff, -
_ is entitled to compensatory damages in amount of --,”
vou put a little “X” in that box and then you wirze in the amount of

~is compensatory damages. Then right below that, “we find the

The amount of --,” and you write in the amount ¢I her compensatory
Zzmages, also you would check that box. Then down =ere on the bottom,
vou check on of two boxes. Don’t check both of them. It says check

ne. We find that the plaintiffs,_ are

ntitied to recover punitive damages. You write in the amount of

1] Q

‘U

unitive damages. Then you take the two compensatory and punitive,

ctal them up, and put it right here (indicating). and there will be
one p:race down here that says, “we find that the tlaintiffs are nct

ntitied to punitive damages.” You would not checx that one at all.

h

You Zjust check the one where it says we are entitled to punitive.
Close them up, and whoever the foreperson is signs it at the bottom,
snd that’s your jury verdict form.

Then you would do the same thing for Mrs. Wi You would

check where it says you’re supposed to check wizh the “X“. Put a
check here, and then give compensatory damages. " End then you’d check
one out of two here to say she got punitive damages, total them up and
the foreperson would sign at the bottom.

Now, I'm going to sit down now. And I apprecizte y’all listening

'zo me. I just want to say this, the lawyers in this case, when they
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?_ zet up, I exbect them to do one thing, and that’s a:tack me and attack
% ~y firm. And I want everybody to know, including <them, that I’'m as
i oroud to represent these victims right.here, the— and Mrs.
_, as anybody in this courtroom is to repressnt their corporate
zlient. 1In fact, I choose to represent folks 1like this because 1
can’t stand to éee corppraté_America taking advantage of folks. And
i ~hey’re going to jump me, and I'm ready for it. And they’re going tc
f sump this firm. And Ehey;re going to say everything in the world
about us, and that’s finé. My wife has admitted to me a couple of
zimes, it kind of gets under her when they’ve dons it, but it ain’'t
joing to bother me because I'm used to it. And they know it. And
! chere’s one little rule we learned our very first day of law school.
Zverybody learns it when they go to law school. Ewverybody in here
xnows it. And that is, if you got thé facts on your side, argue the
Zacts. If you got the law on your side, argue the law. If you ain’t
got nothing on your side, you’'re just in a box, you’re just dead
wrong, then shoot the messenger. Just attack the lazwyer. BAnd that’s

what they’re going to do so y’all just get ready fcxr it. Thank you.
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9 CLOSING ARGUMENT
10 : BY MR. BOONE:
11 Ladies and gentlemen ofthe jury, I have never iIn my life been so

12'! offended. I can’t believe that this gentleman would sit here and try

' zo trick you into believing that all these people have made this up.

_; zf you cut through the chase and what he just said, well, I’1ll just
H

1

—
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start at the beglnning. Him, him, him, and him are just liars
16| (indicating). But it don’t matter, it’s not about us. What he has
17| said was these people sat here and lied to you. Mr. — you

18| are a liar. Mrs. QNI vou are = liar. G o

19| are a liar. .You’ re dispica{ble for cdming in this c¢ourt telling the
20 lie you told. This is what he’s telling you about your people 3':n your
;;21 community who’s been c¢heated like thousands of ceople, just like
f"“ thousands of other people around this state. He wants you to believe.
23| that. I have never seen so much magic and trickery played in my life.
24 He wants you to believe that.

}25 He has attacked this lawyer, a member of my law firm, because he
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- was scared to attack them. He attacked us. But if you look at it,

! if you cut right to the chase, and figure out what he just did to . you,

- because I'm so worried that he convinced you and tricked you tc

4. believe that. I am scared. I'm terrified if you believe what he just

- told you. He just told you you are no good and a lie, and you sat

there and lied and made this up. And he tried to say it nicely and

jsay, “I think they just was telling the truth”. But when they got tc

the lawyers, they told a lie. They just changed the Stofy. But
ladies and gentlemen, they said we ain’t got no evidence. Please
don’t be tricked. '

_if he’s a thief, guess what, he was their thief.

He worked for them. He was their agent, ladies and gentlemen. And

he’s blaming him on us. He’s blaming us for their man. Can you

believe it. I ain’t never talked this loud in a closing argument

" either. I just feel like I am because I'm so -- he told you all that

it’s our fault that his man was a croock. And said Mr. Methvin’s star

. - witness. Mr. Methvin’s star witness. How did he get to be Mr.

* Methvin’s star witness, ladies and gentlemen? What did he do to make

5

i

e
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him his star witness? Where did he get some ownership from? Where
did he buy this man? Ladies and gentlemen, he worked for them. He
was_iheir agent. He called them and told them when he got corncerned
about the problem, “we’re out here cheating folks everywhere”. Ladies
and gentlemen, it was their man. He told us where he cheated folks
at. Well he may not have intentionally, but he was using their

program, their documents, whatever they told him to do. It didn’t set
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! out on the terms of paper as we said. It didn’t tell the people. how
| much to the payments were. Whirlpobl knew wﬁat they were doing. This
man has pulled off, and I'm terrified that he jﬁst prulled off the best
fraud in the history of law practice. I don’t know. But I sure hope
y'all saw through it. This man is Mr. Methvin’s sctar witness and he
worked for them. What did we do? He was on their payroll. He made
zhem.thousands ahd thousands of dollars by what he -did, and he's our
':witness. I bﬁn him7 'Théy made fhé money froﬁ the cheating he did,
»adies and gentlemen. How are they going to.blame him on us.  He
cheated. He was their agent, and he cheated for these people. He did
their cheating. '
And guess what they’re doing? This is the theory they used: once
; they got caught, I wish —-- wherever his documents ne did his numbers
J%cn about this family, ladies and gentlemen. Guess what "he did.
Zadies and gentlemen, this is hum bug. What is this? Ladies and
gentlemen, he’s telling you that because they got caught cheating
these people that is okay, and we just zeroed the balance. Ladies and
ggntiemen, I zerced your balance because I’'m busted. Anhd you-all --
I donkf believe yoﬁ beliefe it, but I’m.scared that yoﬁ might. He's
zeroed -- this man, he zeroed the balance because he got caught
cheating. Ladies and gentlemen, he wanted to come in here and have
something to say to you, “we tried to make it right”. But, ladies and
gentlemen, why he can’t do that, and why you can’t believe that that's
1 “he truth, the reason is simple, don’t get it from me, get it from his

! employee that he want to throw off on me. He wants me to take the
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bléme for his employeé. If he’s a crook[ because they hired the
crook, and I've got to pay for it.

We’ve got another man that had felcnies. A crcok, their crook.
I don’t know if you remember the felony documents, questions asked
about the felonies, he was their dealer. They’re blaming us for their
crooks. The crooks that made them miilions of dollars. Ladies énd
gentlemen, I’'m géing to say it again, I was worried that if you-all
just bought- that, the greatest scaﬁ in the history of law practice
just occurred here today.

Ladies and gentlemen, Whirlpool Financing sent these people out
there to sell all of these places. We put “Xs” in other places, red.
They sent these people out here to set these satellite dishes. And
i it’s our fault, and that’s my star witness? Let me sxplain it how we
':'would explain when I was younger growing up in my community. They
; had, they’ve been cheating folks, ladies. They got caught. And you
know what crooks usually do if some of their buddies get caught: likeé
y’all ride to the store, whatever you do, or go do something bad andl
the neighbor catch you, you just let your buddies take the fall. :
They’re trying to cut the baggage and run. Everybody else is a crook .
who cheated these people. But Whirlpool is who put them up to it.
They gave them the paperwork, the man told you they called and talked
to them.

Ladies and gentlemen, we didn’t make this up, ladies and
gentlemen. I hope he did not get you to believe this. I was worried

for a moment. I’m thinking now that you-all are a jury who has the




10

(P} ]

tn

~1

b

103

responsibility to speak for this community, the state, and the nation,
and I'm starting to calm back down and believe you-all will see what
really happened. Just because I'm scared any way, because these
people turned their life over to me.

You know what she told me, she said, “you treated me so nice this
week”. That’s what she told me. And that made me feel good. And not
all of them, it was a personal conversation. Mrs. —told
me that, not her husband, not her daughter, not because I know they
feel that wéy because we got a great relationship, but she told me
thét in private. She whispered it to me: “you made me feel'special.
You treated me so good”. But I was afraid because I got their case,
their life, the pain, the feelings they’ve had about this, in my hand.
And I was afraid that y’all almost just got tricked. This lady told
me she appreciated me being nice to her. She said, “I appreciate you
just being so nice to me”. And I was-afraid that this gentleman told
you that his employee, who was a crook, is my star witness, and blame
me for it.

And just out of caution, —was their crook, who sold
all of it, they know it, they made ail-the money from it. Theizr
crook, not mine. I didn’t hire him. I didn’t pay him his salary.
I didn’t make thousands and thousands of dollars off of him. But
that’s all right.

- He was a gentleman, he bought a satellite. He said
they told him $40.00 a month for three years. “Are you sure. Yes”.

Did he lie? Well, I’m sure if you’re going to believe anything they
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Egsaid, you got to say that that man sat ﬁp in here and just lied to
you. Ms. _from this community, a nurse, she sat here,
; ladies and gentlemen, she is é no good liar, is what they want you to
,;believe. She was nervous. I saw her up here nervous. She was scared
" to even be here. She was telling the truth of what happened to her.
-— I think that was the.older white gentleman. H
;:Asaid they told him $37.00 a8 month for three years. He said/ﬁE/aI;;Ti/
" ask them too much because he was ccnfused. Yeah, the man didn’t have
much of an education. He wasn’t that smart. He was confused. He was
confused the déy they walked in the house and sold him the junk. BHe

trusted them. That’s the whole point. These people trusted them.

2t Yeah, he was confused. He had no clue what he was getting. He
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trusted f_hat man on what he told him. He didn‘t understand nothing
about»thése terms, these numbers, this financing. They said $33.00
a moﬁth for three years, and that’s what he believed. Yeah, he was
" confused. He don't know no better.

Ms. g ‘ R ‘
:' gentleman I was talking about. Ms. bad credit, bankrupt.

: Ain’t many people going to give her credit. They took advantage of

Talking about preying, uneducated, the

20 it. We’re talking about preying.

~
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- single mother, two kids, not good credit. They

z :took advantage of her, ladies and gentlemen. And they’re going to
| call these people a lie and get‘ away with it. But they ain’t the only
i lie. Everybody here had to be lying. And he said it ain’t no

evidence. Well good God, what you want? All these people telling you
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they’ve been lied to and cheated by Whirlpool. If that ain’t
evidence, ain’z no sﬁch thing as evidence in the world.

Ms. - two kids, single mama, credit not good, she trusted
these people. _bankrupt. He brought _it out.
Credit bad. =:3d her that if her mama signed the décument that that
was just so -- =ince it was the mother’s house, that was so they could

just come bacx in the house and take the computer. That’s the lie

_they told thess people so they woﬁld agree to this.

Yes, ma’az, you're only signing this because they trusted them.
She say she didn’t really read the document because the man ate a
steak dinner I her house. She trusted the man. He ate dinner with

them. He stavzad there ﬁntil eleven o’clock. She believed he was

i telling the truzh. The mother signed because it what they told her,
;
t out of their mcuth is, “if we got to come repossess it, .since you're

bankrupt, bad zredit, maybe you’re going to go bad on us again, we’ll
collect your mcrey and then come get our stuff once you have trouble”.
They knew she was having financial trouble. They were going to sell
the stuff, get the money as long -as they could, and come take the
equipment back. But they told her -- and listen, Ms. _that
was the white Ffemale who had her own business, or did work for a
nurse, something like that, she was bankrupt, had financial trouble,

had to go to zhem. They told her, after this man ate her steak

dinner, and she trusted him, “but your mom is going to have to sign.

You got a lit:zle credit problem, and it’s Jjust to come take the

computer if ycz don’t pay’. They lied. The lady just told you all
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that these people went in her house, ate her steak dinner, and had her
mama as the‘primary person responsible for the loan. Meaning they can
get her credit bad, come seize any property she got, sue her. Lady
said she ain’t paid on the satellite. Her credit is bad, ain’t no

probably. They lied to this lady. Not only told her a lie about the

terms, just like they told these people, just like
-— all of them been told exactly what they’re going

to pay, and how many years. All of these people are no good liars who
just lie, lie, lie. Maybe we ought to find out where the lie is at.
Who'’s doing the lying.

Ladies and gentlemen, I was afraid the greatest trick was pulled

- in history of today. 1I’'m feeling better. I don’t believe y’all are
: going to buy that. I hope y’all are not going to buy that. Got this

lady’s mother is on the hook for something. Never told her.

GRS - ceveroo: QEEEEEED rovbocy remenber
— — she was a white elderly female. Health

so bad, she couldn’t even come out the house to give a deposition.

They had to go to her. Ms. if she was sitting there,

I could ask her that question. “Ms. —, how you feel about
these people calling you a no good sleasy, liar”. Ms. _

ain’t got nothing to do with this lawsuif.. I don"t know how he tried
to twist all of that to make it sound like something bad about us.
These people don’t know nothing about the lawsuit. That’s right.
They were cheated separately and individually. That’s just the point.

They’re cheating all these'people. That’s the point. These people
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don’t know these people, that’s the point. They cheated those people
way up here in Hunﬁsville, in North Alabama. They cheated people all
over the place, Lamar County, Fayette County, Walker County,
Tuscaloosa County, Creene County, Hale County, Bibb County. They
don’t know each other. They're cheating them evérywhere. That’s the
point. How some kind cf way he tried to trick y’all into beliéving,
I don’'t know what he was trying to do. It sounded negative to me.
They don’t know nothing about this lawsuit. That’s right. They were
cheated by themselves, on their own.

Ms. -can’t see, sick, couldn’t come out of her-house, and
she sat there and told you-all she was told a particular price. I
' think it was maybe the same thing, $34.00 a month for three years, or
maybe it was five yesars and $52.00. Whatever it was, it was a set
number, same price, sams lie they told to evérybody.

But, ladies and gentlemen, Mr. - their man, which they

don’t want to take credit for, who worked for Whirlpool, no friend of

the B who made them all of that money, said, “not only
the people we just toid y’all about and put in this courtroom have
been lied and cheated the same way”. He knows at least two hundred
more that they cheated. And when he realized the payments weren't
coming out as they said, he was feeling a little upset about it.
Well, whatever he felt, hé thought that wasn’t right,_and he left the
company. You-all know they want to blame us for that. That agreement

didn‘t tell nobody what the terms were. He wouldn’t have known.

Whirlpool was behind this scam.
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And they’re taiking about our use of the word. Ocie used it.
It’s a good word because it’s the truth. They are preying on people,
cheating people, taking advantage of people because of lack of -- not
one reéson, it’s several reasons you’re going to prey on people. If
you don’t have that much money, you got to take the deal you got or
you ain’t getting nothing. You can’t gé to the barnk and get better
credit because you’ve got to take this bad credit. You don’t have no
education. You got to -- I can sell you whatever I want to and take
advantage of vyou. If you can’'t see, and you’re just signing a
document because you trust them, they can come back and say, “I never
told that to nobody”. That’s what they did. They done lied. They
said, “I don’t know what happened’. Ms. -“I don’t know what
happened”. Nobody said that. All these people lying to you, and the
other two hundred.

And he was talking about offensive. Ladies and gentlemen, this
is the most offensive way I’ve ever seen in my life to defend a case,.
He has called everybody a lie. When he and his company did all the
lyj'.ng. This is simple, though, but I want you to guess this one.
Bécause, I mean you heard the witness, nobody tried to embarrass any
of these people. ' We wanted y’all to understand what the conditions
were when this loan was made. Some people were not as much as
educated as others. I think -may have said she finished the.
10th grade; father, 3rd grade; mother, 7th. Ms. can’t see.

Diabetes. —single mother, bad financing.

the guy from the military. He said his credit was bad. Couldn’t
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: hardly gef credit. I mean, ali of these people with'reaSOns why they
: cduld be preyed on. Education, finances, women, single mothers. But
this is Jjust one little small sample cf-the trickery, ladies and
gentlemen. ' Because a lot of these people did not, and wefe.not very,
you know, understanding, flipping numbers. And this lawyer kept
i trying to say 36 months. Ladies and gentlemen, we kept saying $34.00
.? a month in three years, very simple so it could be simple and straight
: forward. Y’all heard him keep saying 36 menths. That’s just a very
'simplé of example because he was hoping they didn't know Qhat 36
; months were, and said the terms wrong. Because his case was, if it

; wasn’'t $34.00 a month for three years, and they understood it to be

2% jifferent, this is the law, we’ve got to prove the law. And if it was

f 534,00 and some other number a month and scme other number or years,
3! ~hen we don’t know what the claim was, we can’t prove the fraud. But
all oflthese people told you specifically what they were told. 5

This man kept telling you 36 months from the beginning ofitrial%
to the end. Why was it so hard for him to say three years? BecauseI
ne was hoping séqebody didn’t understand the 36 months. He kneQ some
of these people weren’t very educated. He was hoping somebody didn’'t
understand whaf 36 months calculated to. 36 months equaled three
years. Why he kept using 36 months? That’s just one.small -- I don't
even want to make a big issue of it. Just one small example of how
he was trying to prey on these peopie, to hope he could trap somebody

before the case was over intc that trick, and saying a different

£number, and jumping up in front of y’all and say, “see there, they
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[’ don’t know what the agreement was, they were confused. And they may':

1J-

- be confused today”. See that’s what he could have said. They didn’t

ty

" really understand the agreement. If they would have agreed to some

'other number 44, <3, 18, 20, he could have said, “see, they really'

N

"don’t understand zhe agreement. And, ladies and gentlemen, y’all

6 can’t hold us resrcnsible when these people really didn’t understand.

-1

They Fjust made a mistake. Don’t hold us at fault”. People, he'’s

& trying to trick y'all,_ladies-énd gentlemen.

D

The crook tr?ing to call us crooks. And the simple way to do it
It is don’t worry abcut whether he calied me a crook. Just don’t worry
'11 about that. The simple way is judge it for who this case is about.
Don’t let him fool y5u. Don’t let him talk my law firm because we
12 defend consumers, tsople who are are being cheated every day. We're
_14 one of the only law firms in this state that does that every day. We
15 protect people, rszular people. We’re not with the big corporation.
16 That’s why we’re the enemy. We’re like Robin Hood. They think we’re
17 taking from the =xich, giving it to the poor. We're bad. We're
18 messing with their establishment. We're taking.money from the big
19 powerful companies who usually can rﬁn over people and get away with
2OE it and sell you this trick that he tried to sell you, that when I
21 Jjumped up out tha: seat, I was so pissed off. I’m better now. He

22 tried to trick y'all, and y’'all ought to be really offended. Because

o
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I was offended. &2nd I don’t get offended trying a lawsuit. But your

24 - intelligence was <challenged then, This man (indicating), <from
25 & wherever he came :Irom, whatever kind of background he came from, he

Bl "o
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challenged y’all and thought he was smarter than y’all and could fool
y'all. This man said, “my education, my skills, I can trick these
peoplg,wénd Mr. Boone ain’t going to be smart enough to catch it. I'm
going Eg-trick this jury. Mr. Boone and his law firm ain’t gcing to
be able to do nothing about it”. Mr. Boone. I'm last. He didn’t
zhink I was going to catch him. He didn’t think I was going to céll

nis card right here today. His card has been called, ladies and

gentlemen.. He was tricking you, and been trying to trick us from the
beginnihg. I didn’'t make these people up. —-
D GRS (IR :icc and black people,
211 with a problem: uneducated, no money. I didn’t make these
people up. All across the state. I’m offended. .

And that number Tom pﬁt up on the board, that don’t mean nothing
o me. This company don’t care. That number just -- somebody got to
do something. They’re trying pull this kind of stuff, and look at us
straight in our eyes and calling us a lie. You heard what the people
said. I didn’t tell them to say that. His own people are cheating
Zolks. His employees that they took the money from. And he sat here
znd looked them in the eye in particular and called them a lie. But
sne time before he had finished, he called me directly a lie. He got
me before it was over.

But it ain’t even about us. This is what it’s about. Mr.

— either you’re a no good liar or you're not. That’s what

y’all got to decide. And all them other people were no good liars.

Ars. _ you’'re a no good liar. —, you’re a no good
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liar. That's what.you go to_@ecide._ That’s what he just told you.
And either you saw'f£ or you didn’t. But my faith is restored now.
And I think I see the way again. And I don’t think it’s a problem no
more. But I was scared. I was scared to death.

You know, he kept bragging about him not being scared. Because
he thought he was going to trick y’all. Well he -- I’m going to go
with his term, they ain’t scared. I'm going to go against him. He
said they was was scared.. He said they wasn’t. I don’t believe Tom,
I believe him. They ain’t scared. Guess what, I wish y’all knew what
I was thinking. I'm going to say it, let’s make them scared. They
ain’t scared. I don’t believe Tom. They ain’t. He was right.
They’re not. They’re not scared. So the only way they’re going to
stop doing what they’re doing, let’s make them scared. Because
they’'re going to come in here and try to flim-flam y’all some more.

Ladies and gentlemen, this case, it’s not even just about Mr. and
Mrs. — All the people I just went over to you have been
pulled -- the same scam has been pulled on them. You couldn’t talk
to nobody else. During this trial you didn’t supposed to confer with
anybody else, and I trust that. And I know y’all didn’t, because the
Judge told you you couldn’t. And I trust you-all followed the law,
and going to continue to follow the law. But this trial is going to
end one day, and you’re going to have to feel good about what you did.
And you’re going to have to look into your community, and it’s just
one simple thing you’re going to have to look at and say, “I turned

these people aloose with a license to continue doing it,” or, “I stood
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it goes along with that general conduct we’ve seen anyway, you know,
that’s the kind of scam they were pulling, I guess they/re going to
continue to try to do it. But it’s not all about Mr. -
other people have been cheated juét like you heard.

Ladies and gentlemen, put your seal of approval on éqmething.
Stamp it in bold letters. Feel proud and confident whatever you do
for your community here. And if it’s what they did was okay, -stamp
it ﬁroud and be proud. .I don’t know how you can do that. I jﬁst have
no clue how you could do that. And if you don’t appreciate it, stamp
it loud and proud. Tell them you don’t appreciate it.

What Mr. Methvin asked for today when we started was fine with
me. After what I‘ve seen today, I don’t know what it’s going to take
to change it. They just tried to pull the greatest scam.I’ve ever

seen. Thank y’all, ladies and gentlemen.





